ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 16, 2011
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 43

"An Act renamng the Al aska perfornmance schol arship and relating
to the scholarship and tax credits applicable to contributions
to the schol arship; establishing the Alaska performance
schol arship investnent fund and the Alaska perfornmance
scholarship award fund and relating to the funds; rmaking
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 43(EDC) OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 83
"An Act providing for paynent and |oan incentives to public
school teachers for national board certification.”
- HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BILL NO 8
“"An Act relating to questionnaires and surveys administered in

t he public schools.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 16, 2011



BILL: SB 43

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA PERFORVANCE SCHOLARSHI PS

SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 02/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 02/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 02/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 04/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 04/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 04/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 07/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 09/ 11 (S EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 09/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 09/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 11/ 11 (S EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 11/ 11 (S Heard & Held

02/ 11/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 14/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 14/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 16/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 83

SHORT Tl TLE: TEACHER BOARD CERTI FI CATI ON | NCENTI VES
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

02/ 04/ 11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 14/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 14/ 11 (S) Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 16/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

MURRAY RI CHMOND, St af f

Senat or Joe Thonas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned the changes to CSSB 43( ), version
D, on behalf of the Senate Education Standing Committee. Gave an
overview of SB 83 on behalf of the Senate Education Standing
Comm ttee, sponsor of the bill.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 16, 2011



Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on distance education in
Al aska as related to SB 43.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Lobbyi st

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska ( NEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 83 and provided
suggestions for amendnents to the bill.

MARTHA FLEMM NG representing herself
Sewar d, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 83.

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Director

Di vi sion of Teaching & Learning Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions and provided information
on the process a teacher nust take in order to be nationally
certified by the National Board for Professional Teaching
Standards as related to SB 83.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:00: 46 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Davis, French, Co-Chair Thomas and Co-Chair
Meyer.

SB  43- ALASKA PERFORMANCE SCHOLARSHI PS

8:01: 27 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER announced the consideration of SB 43. [CSSB 43,
version M was before the conmmttee.]

8:01: 56 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS) for
SB 43, | abel ed 27-GS1893\D as the worki ng docunent.

CO CHAI R MEYER obj ected for the purposes of discussion.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said version Dis a culmnation of the work done

by the administration, the legislature from both this session
and last, and two legislative task forces. He explained that

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 16, 2011



nost of the <changes have already been discussed by the
conmittee.

8:03:41 AM
MURRAY RICHMOND, Staff to Senator Joe Thomas, explained the
changes to version D begin on page 3, line 30. The change would

make both colleges and universities and certified career and
technical prograns subject to an advisory program and would
require them to make credits and courses available in order to
i ssue a degree or certificate in a custonmary tine period.

Page 4, line 12 deleted the word "customary"” and replaced it
with "a period of tinme custonmary”.

He noted that because all institutions will be required to have
some kind of counseling, the part on "personal challenges" was
removed. This nmeans that while academ c and career advising is
mandatory  at any participating institution psychol ogical
counseling does not need to be provided. He explained that this
was done because sone career and technical institutions may not
have the resources to provide this.

He expl ai ned that nost of the other changes in version D refined
t he |anguage of how the funds work. He referred to the funding
diagram [included in the docunment packet] which shows the basic
breakdown of where the funds for the program come from and where
t hey go.

Page 5, lines 15-21, included |anguage that sharpens-up where
the funds go. Subsection (1) [lines 15-17] included the two
types of awards that are subject to this funding and subsections
(2), (3) and (4) [lines 18-21] discussed where these funds go.

Page 5, line 28 deleted "awarded by" and replaced it wth
"avail able"; and deleted "available”" and replaced it wth
"awar ded" on line 29.

He explained that the previous CS, version M had repealed the
Al aska Capital Income Fund. However, it was brought to I|ight
that there nmay be issues with the single subject title in
repealing a fund that is supposed to establish a schol arship.
Page 7, lines 16-20 changed the |anguage so that, rather than
repealing the income fund, the noney would go directly to the
Al aska Performance Schol arshi p I nvestment Fund.

Page 8, |ines 25-27 sharpened the |anguage on where the Anmerada
Hess Fund noney can be distributed. It also nmade the nobney an

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 16, 2011



appropriation, rather than a deposit, which would go to the
i nvest ment fund.

Page 14, lines 24-25, changed the date of the nopney transfer
from the Alaska Capital Incone Fund to the Al aska Performance
Schol arship Investnent Fund to occur before the end of the
fiscal year, rather the begi nning of a new one.

Subsection (b) [of Section 24 on pages 14-15] i ncl uded
transition |anguage that gives the Alaska Conm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE) the ability to makes awards to
students during the first two years of the program based on an
annual average and nonthly average.

Page 15, line 28 changed the effective date for subsection (2)
and (3) on page 4 [lines 9-13] to July 1, 2012.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked for confirmation that he worked with Jerry
Bur net t [ Deputy Conmi ssioner for the Treasury Division,
Department of Revenue] in creating the funding diagram included
in the conmttee nenbers' packet.

MR. RI CHMOND replied yes.

8:11:55 AM
LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), introduced hinself.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked him to make sone brief comrents on the
ability for rural schools to have access to the curriculum
required for qualifying for this schol arship.

MR MORSE replied that the departnment is doing two things.
First, for nore than a year, it has been |ooking at what the
districts currently offer (which is what's in state regul ation)
in conparison to the curriculum requirenments necessary for the
Al aska Per f or mance Schol arship eligibility. Second, t he
departnment has been |ooking at the capacity of correspondence
schools in individual districts and on a statewi de |evel. They
are also looking into a statewide virtual school that will offer
correspondence courses. He said the departnment is noving forward
to make sure that these offerings exist and are available to all
st udent s.

CO CHAI R THOVAS conmmented that this is not a sinple task

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 16, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH asked for nore information on the correspondence
course offerings: what content is included, who designs the
curriculum and what the success rate is in regards to students
finishing a course on tine.

MR. MORSE answered that he could not speak to the success rate
of students finishing correspondence courses on tinme. In regards
to the content and curriculum of these courses, he explained
t hat there are about 14  school districts that of fer
correspondence education to anyone in the state, which includes
both renedial and advanced courses. Last year DEED brought on an
addi ti onal correspondence school that runs a statew de program
There are also nunerous prograns within individual districts.
The courses are devel oped independently, using commercial text
books to supplenment the course or there are particular
curriculunms that parents can purchase for students. The district
is responsible for making sure these courses align with state
standards. He assured the committee that wthin all of those
prograns there are advanced | evel courses avail able.

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked if the bill, as it has been re-crafted by
the commttee, is workable for the adm nistration

MR. MORSE answered that he thinks DEED can make this piece of
| egi sl ati on wor k.

CO CHAI R MEYER expl ained that the committee is finished with its
work on the scholarship program and are putting the final
touches on it.

SENATOR FRENCH asked for confirmation that the anendnent
proposed by Senator Stevens was included in version D

CO- CHAIR MEYER replied yes. He added that there are also three
fiscal notes included with version D, which have not changed.

8:20: 14 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS noved to report CSSB 43( ), version D, fromthe
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
note(s). There being no objections, CSSB 43(EDC) noved from the
Senate Education Standing Conmttee. [The assunption was that
Co- Chair Meyer renoved his objection.]

8:20: 38 AM
At ease at 8:20 a.m to 8:23 a.m

SB 83- TEACHER BOARD CERTI FI CATI ON | NCENTI VES

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 16, 2011



8:23: 24 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER announced the consi derati on of SB 83.

8:23:57 AM
CO CHAIR THOVAS noved to adopt the work draft for CSSB 83( ),
| abel ed 27-LS0425\1, as the working docunent.

CO CHAI R MEYER obj ected for the purposes of discussion.

MURRAY RI CHMOND, Staff to Senator Joe Thomas, Co-Chair of the
Senate Education Standing Conmittee, sponsor of SB 83, said
teachers have a difficult job. SB 83 provides incentives for
teachers to inprove their teaching skills by becom ng nationally
certified through the National Board for Professional Teaching

Standards (NBPTS). |If a teacher gets certified they would
receive an extra $1,000 per year as an incentive. For teachers
working in a high poverty, low performing area they would

receive an additional $500 per vyear. Finally, for teachers
working in a rural area they would receive an additional $1,000
in order to becone certified. He explained that t he
certification process is rigorous and is wequivalent to a
master's degree in education.

Section 2 of version | would allocate interest free |oans, run
by the Alaska Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (ACPE), to
the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) for
teachers who are enployed by either the departnent or public
school districts. This section would also ask the commission to
devel op an application process to define who is eligible for the
| oan.

He noted that NBPTS is the only recognized board for national
certification. A list of the 25 different areas for
certification is included in the docunent packet [l abeled NBPTS:
Field of Certification].

8:28: 54 AM

CO CHAI R THOWVAS concurred; the national certification process is
very conprehensive. He added that the attached information in
t he docunment packet is very informational and conplinentary to
the bill.

CO CHAI R MEYER opened public testinony.

8:30: 38 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 16, 2011



JOHN ALCANTRA, Lobbyist, National Education Association-Al aska
( NEA- Al aska), stated support for SB 83. He said that the nenbers
of NEA had sone suggested changes to the CS that he would review
with the conmittee.

He turned to page 3, line 4, of version | where the current
| anguage used could possibly deny funding to professionals
wor ki ng in preschool or special education. Menbers of NEA-Al aska
suggested that the CS be anended to include preschool, at a
m ni mum

He explained that sonme of the larger school districts that
already pay a supplenental incentive are concerned that this
will supplant any additional incentives. He said that the
nmenbers of NEA- Al aska hope that an additional income incentive
wi || suppl enent what these teachers are already receiving.

Page 2, lines 2-5, discusses the |oan anmobunt that a teacher can
receive to becone certified. He explained that while the process
to achieve certification is a $2,565 process, teachers often
retake individual sections at an additional cost of $350 per
section. The nenbers of NEA-Al aska asked that this section be
nore specific, by reading: "$1,000 paid toward the cost of
initial certification and no nore than $1,000 annually for
t eachers retaking one or nore conponents”.

Finally, he explained that the quarterly paynent system used by
the comm ssion to pay NBPTS on behalf of teachers could prove
difficult for applicants.

He mentioned that NEA-Al aska has a junpstart program held at the
University of Anchorage (UAA) in the summer. This lays out the
national board certification program and encourages individuals
to becone certified. He said that simlar funding and |oan
prograns have worked well in other states to encourage
i ndividuals to become certified.

8:36: 13 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked how many nenbers of NEA-Al aska are
currently certified.

MR. ALCANTRA answered that about 110-120 individuals are
certified out of the 8,000 teachers who are nenbers of NEA-
Al aska. He said that the fiscal note for SB 83 speaks to about
20 individuals going through this certification per year. He
said that NEA-Alaska is trying to assert that, as a mninm
this nunber remain at 20.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 16, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH asked for <clarification that certification is
equi valent to a master's degree.

MR. ALCANTRA replied yes.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Anchorage School District pays extra
for a master's degree and by how nuch

MR. ALCANTRA answered that they get paid about $1,500 extra per
year .

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Anchorage School District pays the
sanme anmount extra for national certification

MR. ALCANTRA replied that the annual addendum in Anchorage is
$2, 000.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this varies by school district.
MR. ALCANTRA replied yes.

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked whether a teacher who has both a master's
degree and is nationally certified would receive both anounts.

MR. ALCANTRA replied that he believes this is correct but would
need to confirm

8:39:31 AM

MARTHA FLEMM NG, representing herself, stated support for SB 83
She said she is a counselor in the Seward School District and
while she is speaking for herself today, she believes that the
Seward PTSA [Parent Teacher Student Association] would support
this bill as well. She explained that there is a huge difference
bet ween having a naster's degree and being nationally certified.
There are many watered down versions of a master's degree. The
practice of going through this certification is so in depth that
it would help to have sonme incentive to get through the process.
Those who go through this certification inprove their teaching
style and their communi cation with parents and the public.

8.43:18 AM

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Director, Division of Teaching & Learning
Support, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opment (DEED),
said she is a former NBPTS certified teacher.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 16, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH asked what the process is like for teachers to
becone certified.

M5. CURRAN answered that the process is very rigorous and gives
teachers the opportunity to Jlook at their practice. She
explained that there are five core propositions in national
board certification; on top of this each of the 25 areas of
focus has additional set standards. She explained that she
| ooked at how children's | anguage devel ops, math, social studies
as building a conmunity, and science. Wthin each focus she had
to create a portfolio showing how particular lessons fit into
the district's curriculum and standards. After turning in her
portfolio she took an assessnent exercise to show what she knew
about each of her chosen topics and how she incorporated these
into her teaching practice wusing the standards and core
propositions. The certification occurred while she was teaching
and it gave her an opportunity to |ook at what she was doing in
the classroom It <changed the way that she |ooked at the
cl assroom and the patterns she had as a teacher.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if every teacher who enbarks on this
certification can finish it.

M5. CURRAN answered no, at the tinme that she was nationally
certified the pass rate was 67 percent.

SENATOR DAVI S asked when she conpl eted her certification.

M5. CURRAN answered that she was nationally board certified in
1998. She explained that she chose not to be recertified when
she noved to DEED and was no | onger a classroom teacher.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if a teacher nust recertify every year.

M5. CURRAN replied every 10 years.

COCHAIR MEYER said the bill addresses additional incentive
paynents for teachers enployed in a high poverty area that has
received a |low perfornmance rating. He asked if it is fairly easy
to tell which schools are in high poverty areas.

IVS. CURRAN answered the AYP [Adequate Yearly Progress]
calculations go to the school level. She said that she believed
| ow performance is what the bill is addressing.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if this only pertains to public schools.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 16, 2011



M5. CURRAN replied that a teacher can teach in a private or
charter school and becone nationally certified.

8:52: 03 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked if teachers in private or religious schools
woul d be eligible for the proposed incentive program He said he
bel i eved t he answer was no.

M5. CURRAN replied in order to becone certified a teacher nust
"hold a bachelor's degree, have conpleted three full years of
t eachi ng/ counsel i ng, possess a valid state teaching/counseling
license for that period of tine, or if teaching where a |icense
is not required (which is not in the state of Alaska) have
taught in schools recognized and approved to operate by the
state."”

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if schools in high poverty areas can easily
be identified or if it is solely based on academ c performance.

M5. CURRAN answered yes, Title | schools are considered high
poverty through NBPTS.

SENATOR FRENCH said it seems the «conmittee s getting
conflicting answers fromthe aides and the departnment in regards
to teacher eligibility.

SENATOR DAVIS asked what her connection is, through the
departnent, to nationally certified teachers in the state.

M5. CURRAN replied that she is currently the director for the
Di vision of Teaching & Learning Support for DEED, which oversees
the office for Teacher Certification.

SENATOR DAVI S asked what she does to oversee this office.

M5. CURRAN answered that the office for Teacher Certification
receives approximately $20,000 per year from the federa
government to allow teachers to defray sone of the «costs
involved with national certification. This funding is allotted
to teachers according to the criteria set by the NBPTS. Only
$1,000 of the certification process is covered by this funding,
whi ch | eaves $1500 for the teacher to pay.

SENATOR DAVI S asked for confirmation that they receive $20, 000
per year from federal funding.

Ms. CURRAN replied yes.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 16, 2011



SENATOR DAVI S asked whether a teacher, in a school district that
gives a nonetary incentive for certification already, would al so
be eligible to receive noney fromthe departnent.

MS5. CURRAN answered that the $2,000 paid by certain districts is
the incentive a teacher would receive after they are nationally
certified.

SENATOR DAVI S said she would like to get clarification fromthe
school districts that offer this incentive. She explained that,
to her know edge, these districts also give teachers noney
towards certification

8:57:30 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER cl osed public testinony.

MR. RICHMOND explained that SB 83 provides incentives only to
public school teachers enployed by state districts or the
departnent. He explained that NBPTS has different standards for
certification.

He noted that the CS reflects M. Alcantra's concern about the
quarterly paynent system[page 3, lines 11-12].

CO CHAIR MEYER added that public schools also include charter
and al ternative school s.

8:58: 59 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER announced he would hold SB 83 in comittee.

8:59: 30 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Co-Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 8:59 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 16, 2011



